
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 
PERTAINING TO EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS 



CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 
PERTAINING TO EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

-I-  

FINANCIAL SECTION: 

Independent Auditor’s Report 1 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 5 

Basic Financial Statements: 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
Statement of Net Position 15 

 Statement of Activities 17 
Fund Financial Statements: 

Governmental Funds – Balance Sheet 19 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 20 
Governmental Funds – Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
 Changes in Fund Balances 21 
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
 Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 22 
Proprietary Funds – Statement of Net Position 23 
Proprietary Funds – Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position 27 
Proprietary Funds – Statement of Cash Flows 29 
Fiduciary Funds – Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 33 
Fiduciary Funds – Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 34 

Notes to Financial Statements 35 

Required Supplementary Information: 

General Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – 

Budget and Actual 144 
Reconciliation of General Fund (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund (Modified Accrual Basis) 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 145 

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – 
 Budget and Actual 146 

Other Post-Employment Benefits Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Contributions 147-150

 Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 151-161
Pension Plan Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 162-166
Schedule of Defined Benefit Plan Contributions  167-171

Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Trust – Defined Benefit 
Pension Plan Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability 172 
Schedule of Defined Benefit Plan Contributions 173 
Schedule of Defined Benefit Plan Investment Returns 174 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 175-178



CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 
PERTAINING TO EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

-II-  

COMMENTS OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR: 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 179-180

ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION – EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS: 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control 
Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the 
Uniform Guidance 181-184

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

185-192

193

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Management’s Response to Auditor’s Findings 

194-202

203-212



FINANCIAL SECTION 



"'--Crowe 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners 
and the County Manager 

Clark County, Nevada 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

Crowe LLP 

Independent Member Crowe Global 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Clark County, Nevada (County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the accompanying financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of June 30, 2022, and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

We did not audit the financial statements of the following: 

• The financial statements of the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada and the Clark County
Water Reclamation District, which are both major funds and which, when combined represent 38
percent of the assets, 49 percent of the net position and 59 percent of the revenues of the business­
type activities.

• The financial statements of the Las Vegas Valley Water District, Big Bend Water District and the
Clark County Stadium Authority, which are discretely presented component units and which, when
combined, represent 78 percent of the assets, 101 percent of the net position and 39 percent of
the revenues of the discretely presented component units.

• The financial statements of the Clark County OPES Trust, Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department OPES Trust, Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension and Other Employee Benefit
Plans, which are fiduciary funds of the County and represent 18 percent of the assets, 23 percent
of the net position, and 1 percent of the combined additions and revenues of the aggregate
remaining fund information.

Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our 
opinions, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for above mentioned funds and entities, are based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

(Continued) 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 24, 
2023 on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the County's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Costa Mesa, California 
January 24, 2023 

WWv/J-f 
Crowe LLP 
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Clark County, Nevada 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2022 

The following discussion and analysis of Clark County, Nevada (the County) is designed to, (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant 
financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the County's financial activities, (c) identify changes in the County's financial position (its ability to 
address subsequent years' challenges), (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (e) identify 
individual fund issues or concerns. 

We encourage readers to read this information in conjunction with the transmittal letter, financial statements and accompanying notes to gain a 
more complete picture of the information presented. 

Financial Highlights- Primary Government 

• The independent auditor's report offers an unmodified opinion that the County's financial statements are presented fairly in all material
respects.

• Government-wide net position totaled $11,314,128,692. Net position of governmental activities totaled $7,522,661,400 and that of
business-type activities totaled $3,791,467,292.

• The County's total net position increased by $1,301,638,698. Net position from governmental activities increased by $949,667,670 and net 
position from business-type activities increased by $351,971,028. Net position from governmental activities increased because of
increased general revenues and operating grants and contributions. Net position from business-type activities increased largely due to
UMC, Clark County Water Reclamation and Department of Aviation surpluses.

• Unrestricted net position was $190,796,550, with ($111,606,899) resulting from governmental activities and $302,403,449 from business­
type activities. Unrestricted net position from governmental activities increased by $537,153,080 from the prior year, and unrestricted net
position from business-type activities increased by $90,573,646 from the prior year.

• Net capital assets were $13,203,767,339, of which $6,940,053,754 was from governmental activities and $6,263,713,585 was from 
business-type activities. Major additions for governmental activities during the year included $190 million toward beltways, roadways, and
streets and $4 million toward flood control projects. Major additions for business-type activities during the year included $159 million in
Department of Aviation capital expenditures, $32 million in UMC capital expenditures, and $78 million in sewer system and related 
equipment additions. Depreciation expense attributable to assets of governmental activities amounted to $338,378,551 for the year, and
$323,678,932 for business-type activities.

• The County implemented GASB No. 87, Leases, effective July 1, 2021. This statement requires leases to be recognized and measured 
using facts and circumstances that existed at the beginning of the period of implementation. The implementation had no impact to
beginning net position or fund balance, as such fiscal year 2021 balances have not been restated. 

• Bonds and loans payable totaled $5,249,141,995. The following new debt was issued during the fiscal year: 

Governmental activities: 
General obligation bonds: 

$ 142,710,000 in bonds for Southern Nevada Water Authority bond bank 

o On November 2, 2021, the County issued $67,620,000 in Clark County, Nevada, General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bond
Bank Refunding Bonds (Additionally Secured by SNWA Pledged Revenues), Series 2021. The bond proceeds totaled
$70,006,223. The proceeds of the bonds are being used to (i) refund all the outstanding Clark County, Nevada, General
Obligation (Limited Tax) Bond Bank Bonds (Additionally Secured by Pledged Revenues), Series 2006; and (ii) pay the costs
of issuing the 2021 Bonds. The proceeds of the Series 2006 Bonds were originally used to make a loan by purchasing a local
water revenue bond to be issued for the purpose of defraying wholly or in part the cost of (i) acquiring and constructing 
improvements for water projects for the Southern Nevada Water Authority; (ii) paying capitalized interest; (iii) paying the cost 
of issuance and (iv) refinancing a portion of the Clark County, Nevada, General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bond Bank Bonds
(Additionally Secured by Pledged Revenues), Series 2001 and the Clark County, Nevada, General Obligation (Limited Tax)
Bond Bank Bonds (Additionally Secured by Pledged Revenues), Series 2002. The bonds will be repaid by SNWA pledged 
revenues. Interest payments are paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1, beginning May 1, 2022, with an interest rate
ranging from 2.125% to 3.000%. Principal payments are paid annually on November 1, 2033, November 1, 2035, and
November 1, 2036. The bonds mature on November 1, 2036. This transaction resulted in the defeasance of the Clark 
County, Nevada, General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bond Bank Bonds (Additionally Secured by Pledged Revenues), Series 
2006 and the related liability has been removed from the financial statements of the County. The refunding resulted in a loss 
of $1,270,129 which represents the difference between the defeased bonds and the amount placed in escrow. The refunding 
also resulted in future cash flow savings of $6,788,231 and an economic gain (difference between the present value of the 
debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $5,661,374. 

o On May 10, 2022, the County issued $75,090,000 in Clark County, Nevada, General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bond Bank
Refunding Bonds (Additionally Secured by SNWA Pledged Revenues), Series 2022A. The bond proceeds totaled 
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• General government expenses totaled $329,709,570, or 19% less than the prior year, primarily due to reduced costs associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic and a decrease in pension expenses. 

• Public safety expenses totaled $1,547,385,086, or 3% less than the prior year.

• Public works expenses totaled $723,643,219, or 1 % less than the prior year.

• Health expenses totaled $54,206,872, or 19% less than the prior year, due to reduced costs associated with the COVID-19 pandemic.

• Welfare expenses totaled $456,092,769, or 17% more than the prior year, due to financial assistance costs associated with the economic
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.

• At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $412,347,607, or 16% of total General Fund
expenditures and transfers out.

Overview of the Financial Statements 

• This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financial statements which are composed of
government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and accompanying notes. This report also contains required
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

o The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County's finances in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

o The statement of net position presents information on all the County's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows. The
difference between assets and deferred outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows is reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or
deteriorating.

o The statement of activities presents information showing how the County's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation and sick leave).

o The government-wide financial statements report three types of activities: governmental activities, business-type activities, and
discretely presented component units. The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to 
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities 
of the County include general government, judicial, public safety, public works, health, welfare, culture and recreation, community 
support, and interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the County include operations of its hospital, airports, sewer 
utilities, and other operations. Discretely presented component units account for functions of legally separate entities for whom the 
County is financially accountable or whose governing bodies are substantially the same as the County. The activities of the discretely 
presented component units include regional transportation, flood control planning, stadium authority, and water districts. Complete
financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative offices. Contact
information is included in The Reporting Entity section of Note I, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

o The government-wide financial statements include not only the governmental and business-type activities of the County itself (known
as the primary government), but also those of the legally separate entities for whom the County is financially accountable and whose 
governing bodies are substantially the same as the County: University Medical Center (UMC) and the Clark County Water 
Reclamation District. The Board of County Commissioners acts as the governing board for each of these component units whose 
activities are blended with those of the primary government because they function as part of the County government. Complete 
financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative offices. Contact
information is included in The Reporting Entity section of Note I, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Fund Financial Statements 

o A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

- Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government­
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements 
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the County's near-term financial requirements.
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- Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County's near­
term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

- The County maintains individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance 
sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and 
the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department fund, both of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds are provided in the combining and individual fund statements and schedules. In accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions certain special revenue funds have been included in the General Fund for financial reporting purposes as shown in the
Major Governmental Funds section. These funds are not included for budgetary comparison purposes described below.

- The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement is 
provided for each of the County's governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget. The budgetary comparison
statements for the major governmental funds are presented as required supplementary information; the budgetary comparison
statements for all other governmental funds are included in the fund financial schedules and accompanying supplementary
information.

Proprieta,y Funds 

- The County maintains two distinct types of proprietary funds. 

♦ Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its hospital, airport, sewer, and other activities. 

♦ Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County's various
functions. Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
induded within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses internal service funds 
to account for the following activities: 

* Construction management

* Fleet maintenance 
* Investment pool operations
* Employee benefits

* Central printing and mailing 
* Information systems development 
* Self-insurance activities, including: 

+ Liability insurance
+ Workers' compensation

+ Group insurance 

- Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide business-type activities financial statements, but 
with more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for UMC, and Clark County Water 
Reclamation District, each of which is a blended component unit and reported as a major fund within the fund financial statements. 
In addition, separate information is provided for an additional major fund, the Department of Aviation. Conversely, the other non­
major enterprise funds and the internal service funds are combined into separate single aggregated presentations in the 
proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the other non-major enterprise funds and internal service funds is 
provided in the combining and individual fund statements and schedules.

Fiducia,y Funds 

- The County's fiduciary funds consist of four (4) Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) trust funds, one (1) external investment 
pool custodial fund, and 31 other custodial funds. The pension (and Other Employee Benefit) trust funds are the Clark County 
OPES Trust, Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department OPES Trust, Las Vegas Valley Water District Pension Plan, and Las
Vegas Valley Water District OPES Plan. The external investment pool custodial fund is to account for the net position of the 
County's external investment pool. The other custodial funds are used to hold monies for other entities or individuals until 
disposition. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

- The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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Other Information 

- In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary 
information concerning pension and other post-employment benefits for employees. It also includes a schedule of budgetary
comparisons for the following major governmental funds:

• General Fund

• Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Special Revenue Fund

- The combining statements and individual fund budgetary schedules are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.

- Unaudited statistical information is provided on a ten-year basis for trend and historical analysis.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

• Net position of the County as of June 30, 2022, and June 30, 2021, are summarized and analyzed below: 

Clark County, Nevada Net Position - Prima[Y Government 

!:a2vernm!;lntal As;tivitie:;; By:;;in!;lS:i: Tl,'.i;ie Activiti!;lS Total 
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Assets 
Current and other assets $ 5,951,989,479 $ 5,506,985,410 $ 2,534,080,141 $ 2,518,509,832 $ 8,486,069,620 $ 8,025,495,242 
Net capital assets § 940 Q53 754 !l 830 755 787 6 2§3 713 585 § 22§ 4§3 662 13 2Q3 7§7 339 13,057,219,449 

Total assets 12 892 043 233 12 337 741 197 8 797 793 726 8 744 973 494 21 689 836 959 21,082,714,691 

Deferred outflows 1 119 572 091 643 420 833 398 869 534 254 657 135 1 518 441 625 898,077,968 

Liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 3,925,458,318 4,854,352,010 3,962,786,455 4,558,509,645 7,888,244,773 9,412,861,655 
Current liabilities 867 032 885 1 026 146 519 732 062 837 699 234 590 1 599 095 722 1,725,381,109 

Total liabilities 4 792 491 2Q3 5 880 498 529 4 §94 849 292 5 257 744 235 9 487 340 495 11,138,242,764 

Deferred inflows 1 696 4§2 721 527 §69 771 710 346 §7§ 3Q2 39Q 13Q 2 4Q6 8Q9 397 830,059,901 

Net Position 
Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt 6,121,119,332 6,080,287,255 3,059,906,434 2,798,786,031 9,181,025,766 8,879,073,286 
Restricted 1,513,148,967 1,141,466,454 429,157,409 428,880,430 1,942,306,376 1,570,346,884 
Unrestricted !l l l !lQ!l 899) !§48 159 9Z9l 3Q2 4!!3449 2]] 829 8Q3 ]9Q Z9!l 55Q {436 930 176) 

Total Net Position $ 1 522 661 400 $ 6 512 993 130 $ 3 191 461 292 $ 3 439 496 264 $11 314128692 $10 012 489 994 

• As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the County's financial position. Assets and deferred outflows
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $11,314,128,692 as of June 30, 2022, and by $10,012,489,994 as of June 30, 2021, a net 
increase of $1,301,638,698, or 13%. 

• 81 % of the County's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment, 
etc.); less any related debt outstanding used to acquire those assets (unspent proceeds from long-term debt issues). The County uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the 
County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt 
must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate the debt. 

• 17% of the County's net position is restricted due to resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Of
restricted net position, 32% is for construction of capital assets, 21% is for repayment of long-term debt, 14% is for public safety, 5% is
restricted for Airport Passenger Facility Charges, and the remaining balance is restricted for the County's special revenue funds or other 
purposes.

• The remaining portion of the County's net position is unrestricted at $190,796,550. 
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Revenues 
Program revenues 
Charges for services 
Operating grants and 
contributions 

Capital grants and contributions 
General revenues 
Ad valorem taxes 
Consolidated tax 
Sales and use tax 
Franchise fees 
Fuel taxes 
Motor vehicle privilege tax 
Room tax 
Other 
Gain on sale or disposition of 

assets 
Investment income (loss) 

Total revenues 

Expenses 
General government 
Judicial 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health 
Welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Community support 
Interest on long-term debt 
Hospital 
Airport 
Sewer 
Other 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net 
position before transfers 

Transfers 

Increase (decrease) in net 
position 

Net position -
beginning 

Net position - ending 

Clark Count�, Nevada Changes in Net Position - Prima[Y Government 

!:a2vernm!;lntal As;tivitie:;; 
2022 

$ 534,578,688 

1,040,430,856 
234,549,343 

884,027,234 
811,240,668 
604,177,865 
102,563,243 
161,607,575 

79,455,891 
61,859,804 
83,078,171 

5,014,214 
{138 166 372} 

4 464 417 180 

329,709,570 
214,177,133 

1,547,385,086 
723,643,219 

54,206,872 
456,092,769 

53,193,922 
34,259,087 

61,723,638 

3 474 391 296 

990,025,884 
{40 358 214) 

949 667 670 

6 572 993 730 

$1 522 661 400 

2021 

$ 444,052,136 

755,424,734 
217,272,577 

809,525,078 
655,472,127 
481,083,993 

88,471,290 
143,876,820 

79,364,308 
23,942,098 
64,731,152 

2,593,685 
660 346 

3 766 470 344 

406,181,117 
222,107,978 

1,587,822,697 
729,973,156 

66,731,872 
389,877,609 

49,548,078 
24,092,910 
66,042,922 

3 542 378 339 

224,092,005 
{40 941 689) 

183 150 316 

6 389 843 414 

$ 6 512 993130 

$ 

$ 

By:;;ine:;;s -t�l;!!il As;tivitie:;; 
2022 

1,682,505,782 

61,403,826 
57,109,383 

26,752,260 

2,094,557 

39,121,710 
{48 916 199} 

1 820 071 319 

760,593,130 
514,825,243 
181,035,601 

52 004 531 

1 508 458 505 

311,612,814 
40 358 214 

351 971 028 

3 439 496 264 

3191 461 292 $ 

2021 

$1,647,891,782 

34,654,271 
90,424,101 

21,887,964 

5,261,008 

132,050 
22 557 546 

1 822 808 722 

807,685,773 
529,927,749 
188,518,392 

47 839 278 

1 573 971 192 

248,837,530 
40 941 689 

289 779 219 

3 149 717 045 

3 439 496 264 

Total 
2022 2021 

$ 2,217,084,470 $2,091,943,918 

1,101,834,682 790,079,005 
291,658,726 307,696,678 

884,027,234 809,525,078 
811,240,668 655,472,127 
630,930,125 502,971,957 
102,563,243 88,471,290 
161,607,575 143,876,820 

79,455,891 79,364,308 
61,859,804 23,942,098 
85,172,728 69,992,160 

44,135,924 2,725,735 
{187 082 571} 23,217,892 

6 284 488 499 5,589,279,066 

329,709,570 406,181,117 
214,177,133 222,107,978 

1,547,385,086 1,587,822,697 
723,643,219 729,973,156 

54,206,872 66,731,872 
456,092,769 389,877,609 

53,193,922 49,548,078 
34,259,087 24,092,910 
61,723,638 66,042,922 

760,593,130 807,685,773 
514,825,243 529,927,749 
181,035,601 188,518,392 

52 004 531 47,839,278 

4 982 849 801 5,116,349,531 

1,301,638,698 472,929,535 

1 301 638 698 472.929.535 

10 012 489 994 9.539.560,459 

$ ll 314128 692 $ lQ Ol 2 489 994 

• Program revenues induded charges for services (fines and forfeitures, certain licenses and permits, special assessments), and both
operating and capital grants and contributions. Program revenues from governmental activities increased by $392,809,440, or 28%, due
to increases in operating grants and contributions for public safety and welfare and increases in charges for services. Program revenues 
from business-type activities increased by $28.048.837. or 2%. primarily due to increases in airport and sewer revenue.

• General revenues consisted of taxes and interest not allocable to specific programs. For governmental activities, the largest of these 
revenues, ad valorem taxes, increased by $74,502,156, or 9%. This increase reflects the recovery of assessed values during the fiscal 
year. Consolidated tax increased by $155,768,541, or 24 %, and sales and use tax increased in governmental activities by $123,093,872,
or 26%, both due to a continued increase in economic activity during fiscal year 2022. Fuel tax revenue increased by $17.730.755. or 
12%. primarily due to increases in fuel index revenue and aviation fuel tax. Room taxes increased by $37.917.706. or 158%. due to the
recovery from the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. Interest income decreased by $138.826. 718. primarily due to a decrease
in unrealized gain on investments. 

• County governmental activity expenses decreased by 2% in fiscal year 2022. Significant changes from the prior year are as follows:

o General government expenses decreased by $76.471.547. or 19%. primarily due to decreased costs associated with the COVID-19 
pandemic and a decrease in pension expenses. 

o Public safety expenses decreased by $40.437.611, or 3%, primarily due a decrease in pension expenses. 
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o Health expenses decreased by $12,525,000, or 19%, primarily due to decreased costs associated with the COVID-19 pandemic.

o Welfare expenses increased by $66,215,160, or 17%, primarily due to financial assistance costs associated with the economic 
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds 

• The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Govemmenta/ Funds

o The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements.

o As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$3,768,557,195, an increase of $708,550,891, or 23%. Fund balance components have been classified as nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to observe constraints 
imposed on the use of the resources of the fund.

o Nonspendable fund balance is $296,606 and consists of $285,021 of prepaid items for Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department,
and $11,585 of prepaid items for the Forensic Fund.

o Restricted fund balance is $1,683,901,113, or 45% of the total. Spending of these resources is constrained by externally imposed 
(statutory, bond covenant, or granters) limitations on their use. Restricted fund balances indude $783,718,385 for capital projects, 
$279,138,756 for public safety activities and $131,619,593 for debt service. 

o Committed and assigned fund balances combined represent 44% of total fund balance with spending constrained either by the
Board of County Commissioners (BCC) (for committed) or senior management (for assigned). Committed balances are primarily a
result of direction from the BCC to commit funds for the payment of expenditures for specific programs or projects.

o Unassigned fund balance is $415,716,355 and consists of $418,266,313 in the General Fund, which represents remaining fund
balance that is available to support general operations of the County, and ($2,549,958) in the Human Services and Education Sales
Tax Fund, which represents the negative restricted fund balance resulting from a decrease in unrealized gain on investments. 

o The General Fund is the main operating fund of the County. Restricted fund balance of $222,567,147 includes restricted cash and
unspent proceeds from legislatively mandated ad valorem taxes. Unrestricted fund balance, which includes committed, assigned, 
and unassigned balances, totaled $797,009,017 at June 30, 2022. Unrestricted fund balance is 32% of expenditures and other 
financing uses and includes amounts committed and assigned of $14,765,786 and $363,976,918, respectively. Unassigned fund
balance is $418,266,313, or 17% of expenditures and other financing uses. 

o Key factors in the change in fund balance in the General Fund as reported for budget purposes are as follows: 

- Revenues and transfers-in increased by $669,042, 130, or 4 7%.

General fund revenues increased by $603,015,384, or 54%. Ad valorem tax revenues increased by $26,688,313, or 7%, due 
to increases in new construction and property assessed values. Intergovernmental revenue, the largest component of which is 
the consolidated tax, increased by $476,322,002, or 107%, due to the increased economic activity in the local economy and 
revenue received from State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds through the American Rescue Plan Act. Licenses and Permits 
increased by $90,755,361, or 46%, due to the recovery from the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Transfers-in increased by $66,026,746, or 21 %, primarily due to increases in transfers from the various town funds for town 
services. 

- Expenditures and transfers out increased by $692,530, 133, or 51 %.

General fund expenditures increased by $68,286,270, or 9%, primarily due to increases in General government, Judicial, 
Public Safety, and Other general expenditures. Transfers out increased by $624,243,863, or 102%, due to increases in 
transfers to the Community Housing Fund, Covid-19 Response Fund, and County Capital Projects Fund. 

o Other major fund activity is as follows: 

- The Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department operates from current year resources and typically budgets for a zero ending fund
balance. However, it ended the year with a total unrestricted fund balance of $14,389,538. Total revenues and transfers in were 
$651,347,912, which was an increase of $33,721,751, or 5%, over the prior year. Expenditures and transfers out, which consist 
primarily of personnel costs, increased $33,187,623, or 5%, largely due to cost-of-living adjustments (COLA), merit increases, 
increased overtime costs, and increases to retirement contributions. 

- The non-major governmental funds reported a fund balance of $2,734,306,472, of which $1,461,333,966, or 53%, was restricted.
All funds have the resources to meet their commitments. 

11 



Ente,prise Funds 

- The County's enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in 
more detail. Minor differences arise between the enterprise funds and the business-type activities in the government-wide
statements due to the effects of consolidation of internal service fund activities related to the enterprise funds. Total net position 
for these funds increased $348,064,981, or 10% from the prior year. Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds totaled
$298,120,441, an increase of $86,667,599, primarily due to the increase of UMC's and Clark County Water Redamation District's
net position.

/ntema/ Service Funds 

- The County's internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County's
various functions. Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have
been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Other factors concerning the finances 
of the internal service funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the County's governmental activities.

Budgetary Highlights 

• The General Fund's legal level of budgetary control is the function level. The final amended budget for expenditures and other financing
uses was $2,159,585,676 increased through augmentation by $509,890,626 from the original budget. Actual expenditures and other
financing uses were $2,055,211,941, or 5% less than the final budget, primarily due to staff vacancy savings.

• Revenues and transfers from other financing sources of the General Fund exceeded the final budget by $148,839,417, or 8%.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Primary Government 

• Capital Assets

o The County's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2022, was $13,203,767,339, an increase of
$146,547,890, or 1%. Detail by type of activity and asset is summarized in the table below.

Major additions for this fiscal year are as follows:

Governmental Activities 

Roadways and streets $ 159 million 

Flood control projects $ 4 million 

Beltwa land ac uisition and construction $ 31 million 

Business-Type Activities 

Airport improvements and additions 

Sewer system additions 

Hos ital ca ital additions 

Clark County. Nevada Capital Assets - Primary Government 
/Net of Depreciation) 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

2022 2021 2022 2021 

$159 million 

$ 78 million 

$ 32 million 

2022 

Total 

2021 

Land and improvements $ 1,491,148,198 $ 1,482,055,042 $ 2,819,664,298 $2,703,656,884 $ 4,310,812,496 $ 4,185,711,926 
Buildings 1,321,782,706 1,317,252,301 2,819,858,120 2,958,277,929 4,141,640,826 4,275,530,230 
Machinery and equipment 82,553,310 96,645,213 373,504,468 406,502,299 456,057,778 503,147,512 
Right-of-use land and buildings 14,356,828 39,919,205 54,276,033 
Right-of-use equipment 7,725,301 6,160,607 13,885,908 
Infrastructure 3,532,027,936 3,520,035,586 3,532,027,936 3,520,035,586 
Construction in progress 490 459 475 414 767 645 204 606 887 158 026 550 695 066 362 572,794,195 

Total $ 6 !MO 053154 $ 6 830155181 $ 6 263 113 585 $ 6 226 463 662 $ 13 203 161 339 $ 13 051219449 

o For additional information on the County's capital assets see note 4 in the accompanying financial statements. 

Long-Term Debt 

Primary Government 

• At June 30, 2022, the County had total outstanding bonds and loans of $5,249,141,995, a decrease of $410,844,457, or 7%, from the prior
year. This amount was comprised of $1,754,962,198 in general obligation debt backed by the full faith and credit of the County, 
$503,068,209 of general obligation bonds additionally secured by specified revenue sources, $2,893,950,691 of revenue bonds secured 
by pledges of various revenue sources, $93,110,897 in special assessment debt for which the County is liable in the event of default by the 
property owners subject to assessment, and $4,050,000 in notes payable 

Clark County. Nevada Outstanding Debt - Primary Government 

!:a!lY!l[□[l]!l□lal 8i;liYili!li:i E!u::.i□!li:ii:i::IY!l!l &liYili!li:i 

2022 2021 2022 2021 

General obligation bonds $1,754,962,198 $1,847,387,251 $ $ 
Revenue backed general obligation 
bonds 503,068,209 529,733,980 
Revenue bonds 10,000 10,000 2,893,940,691 3,171,543,430 
Special assessment bonds 93,110,897 105,911,791 
Notes payable 4 o�o ooo � 400 000 
Total $ l 852 133 095 $ l 958 109 042 $ 3 391 008 900 $ 3 101 211 4l!l 

o For additional information on the County's debt, see note 6 in the accompanying financial statements. 

Total 

2022 2021 

$1,754,962,198 $1,847,387,251 

503,068,209 529,733,980 
2,893,950,691 3,171,553,430 

93,110,897 105,911,791 
4 o�o ooo 5,400.000 

$5 249 l4l 995 $ 5 659 986 452 
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Economic Factors 

• UMC's operating loss was $2,047,540 in fiscal year 2021 compared to operating income of $44,639,608 in fiscal year 2022. The increase 
in operating income is due primarily to decreases in pension expenses. Total operating revenues increased by 0.2% from the prior year.

• The Department of Aviation's operating loss was $11,930,203 in fiscal year 2021 compared to operating income of $89,768,432 in fiscal
year 2022. The increase in operating income is due to passenger traffic recovering in fiscal year 2022 from the COVID-19 pandemic.

• The County continues to respond to the economic impacts the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the community. Through the American 
Rescue Plan Act, the County was awarded $45 million in Emergency Rental Assistance funds in April 2021 and $440 million in
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery (CSLFRF) funds in May 2021. The Emergency Rental Assistance funds must be obligated 
by September 30, 2025. The CSLFRF funds must be obligated by December 31, 2024 and expended by December 31, 2026. 

• The County has positioned itself to meet the needs of its citizens. The taxable values continue to increase, and the remaining tax base will 
generate adequate revenues to provide basic services. A cost containment program continues to be in place, enforcing a reasonable pace 
of salary growth and position savings. The County's general fund unassigned ending fund balance remains healthy. Together, these
factors have placed the County in an acceptable financial position to mitigate the current economic uncertainty. However, continued
economic uncertainty could ultimately result in a deterioration of the County's financial condition.

Requests for Information 

• This report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances for all interested parties. Questions concerning the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Anna Danchik, Comptroller, at
500 South Grand Central Parkway, Las Vegas, NV 89155. 
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Clark County, Nevada 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Net Pension Liability- Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS} 

There have been no changes in benefit terms since the last valuation. 

Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions 

The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedule of contributions are calculated as of June 30, 2021. The following actuarial 
methods and assumptions were used to determine contribution rates reported in that schedule. 

Actuarial cost Method 

Amortization method 

Asset valuation method 

Assumed inflation rate 

Payroll growth assumption for future years 

Assumed investment rate of return 

Mortality Rates: 

Healthy: Regular 

Healthy: Police/Fire 

Disabled: Regular 

Entry age normal 

The UAAL as of June 30, 2011, shall continue to be amortized over separate 
30-year period amortization layers based on the valuations during which each
separate layer was previously established. 

Any new UAAL as a result of actuarial gains or losses identified in the annual 
valuation as of June 30 was amortized over a period equal to the truncated 
average remaining amortization period of all prior UAAL layers. This occurred 
until the average remaining amortization period was less than 20 years. At 
that point, amortization periods of 20 years are used for actuarial gains and 
losses. 

Any new UAAL as a result of change in actuarial assumptions or methods 
was amortized over a period equal to the truncated average remaining 
amortization period of all prior UAAL layers. This occurred until the average 
remaining amortization period was less than 20 years. At that point, 
amortization periods of 20 years are used for assumption or method changes. 

UAAL layers shall be amortized over "dosed" amortization periods so that the 
amortization period for each layer decreases by one year with each actuarial 
valuation. 

UAAL layers shall be amortized as a level percentage of payroll. 

5-year smoothed market

2.50% 

3.50% per year for regular and police/fire employees 

7.25% (including 2.50% for inflation) 

Pub-2010 General Healthy Retiree Amount-Weighted Above-Median 
Mortality Table with rates increased by 30% for males and 15% for females, 
projected generationally with the two-dimensional monthly improvement 
scale MP-2020. 

For ages 40 through 50, the difference between the rates at age 40 from the 
Pub-2010 General Employee Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality 
Tables and the rates at age 50 from the Pub-2010 General Healthy Retiree 
Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Tables was smoothed. For ages 
less than 40, mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Employee 
Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Tables. 

Pub-2010 Safety Healthy Retiree Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality 
Table with rates increased by 30% for males and 5% for females, projected 
generationally with the two-dimensional mortality improvement scale MP-
2020. 

For ages 35 through 45, the difference between the rates at age 35 from the 
Pub-2010 Safety Employee Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality 
Tables and the rates at age 45 from the Pub-2010 Safety Healthy Retiree 
Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Tables was smoothed. For ages 
less than 35, mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Safety Employee 
Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Tables. 

Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree Amount-Weighted Mortality Table 
with rates increased by 20% for males and 15% for females, projected 
generationally with the two-dimensional mortality improvement scale MP-
2020. 
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ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION – EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 



(Continued) 

Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF 

EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners 
And the County Manager 
Clark County, Nevada 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Qualified and Unmodified Opinions  

We have audited Clark County, Nevada’s (the County) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The 
County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Qualified Opinion on Southern Nevada Public Land Management Program 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified and Unmodified Opinions 
section of our report, the County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on Southern Nevada Public Land Management 
Program for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs 

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major federal programs 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Qualified and Unmodified Opinions 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above.   
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(Continued) 

Matters Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion on Southern Nevada Public Land Management Program 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the County did not comply 
with requirements regarding Assistance Listing No. 15.235 Southern Nevada Public Land Management 
Program as described in 2022-004 for Reporting.  Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our 
opinion, for the County to comply with the requirements applicable to that program. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the County’s 
federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on the County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the County’s 
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we 

 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the County’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

 obtain an understanding of the County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Other Matters 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the County’s 
response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The County’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.  

The County is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit finding included in 
our auditor's report. The County's corrective action plan was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.   
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(Continued) 

Other Matters – Federal Expenditures Not Included in the Compliance Audit 

The County’s basic financial statements include the operations of the University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada, the Department of Aviation, and the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada, 
which expended $45,751,616, $62,457,830, and $140,844,379 respectively, in federal awards which is not 
included in the County’s schedule of expenditures of federal awards during the year ended June 30, 2022. 
Our compliance audit, described in the “Opinion on Each Major Federal Program,” does not include the 
operations of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Department of Aviation, and the Regional 
Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada because they engaged other auditors to perform an audit 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-
002, 2022-004, and 2022-005 to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-003 to be a 
significant deficiency. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the County’s 
response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The County’s response was not subjected to the 
other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
the response. 

The County is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit finding included in 
our auditor's report. The County's corrective action plan was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the County as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements.  We issued our report 
thereon dated January 24, 2023, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our 
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Crowe LLP 

Costa Mesa, California 
March 30, 2023 
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Clark County, Nevada
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal Grantor/Passed-Through Grantor/Program Title AL Grant/Pass-Through Number

Total Federal
Disbursements/
Expenditures

Amounts Passed-
Through to 

Subrecipients

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Direct Program: 
Cooperative Forestry Assistance 10.664 21-LE-11041700-002 2,942$    -$    
Cooperative Forestry Assistance 10.664 21-LE-11041700-002 7,381 -  

10,323 -  

Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster
Passed Through the State of Nevada, Office of the Controller:

Schools and Roads - Grants to States - Title I 10.665 Public Law 106-393 164,069 -  
Schools and Roads - Grants to States - Title III 10.665 Public Law 106-393 28,953 -  

Total Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster 193,022 -  

Direct Program: 
Spring Mountain Youth Camp Forestry Program 10.U01 17-PA-11401705-005 2,175 -  

Total Department of Agriculture 12,498 -  

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE, OFFICE OF ECONOMIC ADJUSTMENT

Direct Program: 
Community Economic Adjustment Assistance for Compatible Use and Joint Land Use Studies 12.610 EN734-21-02 32,150

Total Department of Defense, Office of Economic Adjustment 32,150 -  

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Entitlement Grant Cluster 
Direct Program: 

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants: 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 1 14.218 B-08-UN-32-0001 18,451 -  
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 14.218 B-11-UN-32-0001 9,709 -  
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-15-UC-32-0001 38,792 38,792   
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-16-UC-32-0001 73,880 73,880   
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-17-UC-32-0001 397,120 -  
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-18-UC-32-0001 194,821 -  
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-19-UC-32-0001 1,202,566 57,994   
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-20-UC-32-0001 3,174,050 2,955,037  
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-21-UC-32-0001 300,615 -  
COVID-19 - Community Development Block Grant CARES ACT 14.218 B-20-UW-32-0001 2,311,134 2,147,636  

Total Entitlement Grant Cluster 7,721,138 5,273,339

Passed Through Nevada Governor's Office: 
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 B-20-DW-32-0001 76,337 76,337

Direct Program: 
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 E-20-UC-32-001 188,264 188,147
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 279,394 228,055
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program CARES ACT 14.231 E-20-UW-32-0001 9,518,809 8,903,441

9,986,468 9,319,643

Passed Through Nevada Department of Business and Industry, Housing Division:
Emergency Solutions Grant Program HMIS Support 14.231 E20-DC-32-0001 50,291 -  

Passed Through Nevada Housing Division: 
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program CARES ACT 14.231 E-20-DW-32-0001 1,723,174 1,694,230

11,759,933 11,013,872

Direct Program: 
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M16-DC320224 184,786 184,786
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M17-DC320224 2,042 -  
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M18-DC320224 380,761 380,413
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M19-DC320224 27,112 27,112
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M20-DC320224 80,207 2,500
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M21-DC320224 246,350 -  
Recaptured Home Funds 14.239 1,390,000 1,390,000

2,311,259 1,984,811

Passed Through Nevada Housing Division: 
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-16-SG-32-0100 28,445 28,445
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-17-SG-32-0100 86,816 86,816
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-20-SG-32-0100 195,000 195,000
Recaptured Home Funds 14.239 9,000 9,000

319,261 319,261
2,630,519 2,304,072

Direct Program: 
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0099L9T001601 32,572 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0071L9T001805 -  -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0071L9T001906 119,324 119,324
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0071L9T002007 817,442 817,442
Continuum Of Care Program 14.267 NV0061L9T002008 518,047  -  
Continuum Of Care Program 14.267 NV0061L9T002109 342,107 - 
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Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0126L9T001800 275,660$    -$     
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0133L9T001900 105,014 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0078L9T001806 -  -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0078L9T002008 1,134,900 1,110,967
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0094L9T012005 122,822 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0096L9T022005 78,341 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0113L9T001902 587,388 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0113L9T002003 672,597 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0114L9T001801 1 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0114L9T001902 596,345 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0114L9T002003 934,871 -  
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 NV0100L9T001601 2,642 -  

6,340,074 2,323,288
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 28,528,001 20,990,908

DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR

Direct Program: 
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L16AC0098 1,240,311 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L16AC00099 66,382 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L17AC00041 267,690 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L17AC00040 3,619,896 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L17AC00077 602,456 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L17AC00076 2,000 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L20AC00065 123,313 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L20AC00067 71,126 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L20AC00064 218,369 -  
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L20AC00075 146,723 -  

6,358,265 -  

Passed Through Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management:
Southern Nevada Public Land Management 15.235 L20AC00069 145,184 -  

6,503,450 -  

Direct Program:
National Wildlife Refuge Fund 15.659 Congressional Appropriation 4,548 -  

Total Department of Interior 6,507,998 -  

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Passed Through Nevada Department of Public of Safety:
CESF Remote Supervision, Webcams, BlueJeans Licenses 16.034 20-CESF-08 22,603 -  
Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program 16.034 20-CESF-25 662,750 -  

685,353 -  

Passed Through Nevada Office of the Attorney General:
Community-Based Violence Prevention Program 16.123 2019-GANG-01 147,453 -  

Direct Program: 
Services for Trafficking Victims 16.320 2019-VT-BX-K002 369,809 23,660

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Antiterrorism Emergency Reserve 16.321 16321-19-015 105,422 -  
Antiterrorism Emergency Reserve 16.321 16321-19-019 51,447 -  

156,869 -  

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Allocation to States 16.540 2020-JF-FX-XXXX 130,000 -  

Direct Program: 
Missing Children's Assistance 16.543 2017-MC-FX-K019 15,524 11,654
Missing Children's Assistance 16.543 2020-MC-FX-K011 355,557 122,058

371,081 133,711

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 16575-19-008 337,946 -  
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 16575-20-011 3,661,333 -  
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 16575-19-105 141,615 -  
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 2019-V2-GX-0021 128,839 -  

4,269,733 -  
Passed Through Nevada Office of the Attorney General:

DA Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 16.575 16575-20-010 214,403 -  
4,484,136 -  

Passed Through Nat'l Assoc of Voca Asst:
Crime Victim Assistance/Discretionary Grants 16.582 CAP22-883 4,918 -  

Direct Program: 
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 16.585 2017-DC-BX-0044 21,044 -  
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 16.585 2018-DC-BX-0027 38,168 -  
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 16.585 2020-DC-BX-0037 73,693  -  
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 16.585 2019-DC-BX-0051 211,840 -  
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 16.585 2020-DC-BX-0164 30,114 -  
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 16.585 2019-VC-BX-0088 8,835  -  

383,694 - 
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Passed through the State of Nevada, Office of the Attorney General:
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 2021-WF-AX 62,707$ -$  
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 2021-VAWA-22 76,062 -
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 2020-VAWA-23 9,834 -
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 2021-VAWA-23 33,915 -

182,518 -

Direct Program: 
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 2020-AP-BX-1263 257,550 -

Passed through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Community Prosecution and Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 20-PSN-02 38,281 -

Direct Program: 
CASA/Guardian AD Litem 16.726 NV10369-20-0721-CM 48,961 -

Direct Program: 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2018-DJ-BX-0468 165,997 70,225
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2019-DJ-BX-0831 705,171 394,853
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2020-DJ-BX-0483 94,524 -

965,692 465,078

Passed through Nevada Department of Public Safety:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 20-JAG-12 30,227 -
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 21-JAG-19 40,000 -

70,227 -
1,035,919 465,078

Direct Program: 
Forensic DNA Capacity Enhancement 16.741 2019-DN-BX-0045 180,497 -
Forensic DNA Capacity Enhancement 16.741 2020-DN-BX-0016 398,813 -
Forensic DNA Capacity Enhancement 16.741 15PBJA-21-GG-03154-DNAX 94,827 -

674,137 -

Direct Program: 
Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement 16.742 2019-CD-BX-0072 141 -
Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement 16.742 2020-CD-BX-0059 210,041 -

210,182 -

Passed through Nevada Department of Public Safety:
Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement 16.742 19-FSI-02 18,002 -
Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement 16.742 20-FSI-02 19,255 -
Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement 16.742 21-FSI-02 39,056 -

76,313 -
286,495 -

Direct Program: 
Criminal and Juvenile Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Program 16.745 2018-MO-BX-0030 103,312 -

Direct Program: 
Edward Byrne Memorial Competitive Grant Program 16.751 2020-DG-BX-K014 200,941 -

Passed Through Nevada Office of the Attorney General:
National Sexual Assault Kit Initiative 16.833 2019-SAKI-01 342,548 -
National Sexual Assault Kit Initiative 16.833 NVAG SAKI 236,479 -
National Sexual Assault Kit Initiative 16.833 2019-AK-BX-0007 85,200 -

664,227 -

Direct Program:
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 681,405 -
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 164,652 -

846,057 -

Direct Program: 
ATF - Gang Task Force 16.U01 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 15,429 -
ATF - Gang Task Force 16.U01 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 52,871 -
DEA - So. NV Gang Task Force 16.U02 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 3,921 -
DEA - So. NV Gang Task Force 16.U02 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 20,094 -
DEA - Marijuana Suppression 16.U03 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 13,128 -
DEA - Marijuana Suppression 16.U03 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 31,673 -
DEA - Tactical Diversion Task Force 16.U04 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 7,381 -
FBI - Criminal Apprehension Team 16.U05 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 32,211 -
FBI - Criminal Apprehension Team 16.U05 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 174,619 -
FBI - Joint Terrorism Task Force 16.U06 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 5,523 -
FBI - Joint Terrorism Task Force 16.U06 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 17,504 -
FBI - Las Vegas Safe Streets Gang Task Force 16.U07 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 12,481 -
FBI - Las Vegas Safe Streets Gang Task Force 16.U07 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 51,759 -
FBI - Cyber Task Force 16.U08 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 3,066 -
FBI - Cyber Task Force 16.U08 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 7,915 -
US Marshals - NV Fugitive Investigative Strike Team 16.U09 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 110,973 -
US Marshals - NV Fugitive Investigative Strike Team 16.U09 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 158,201 -
MPD - Child Exploitation Task Force 16.U10 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 27,213 -
MPD - Child Exploitation Task Force 16.U10 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 54,628 -
FBI - SNV Human Trafficking Task Force 16.U11 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 18,142 -
FBI - SNV Human Trafficking Task Force 16.U11 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 49,579 -

(Continued)

187



 Clark County, Nevada
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 (Continued)

Federal Grantor/Passed-Through Grantor/Program Title AL Grant/Pass-Through Number

Total Federal
Disbursements/
Expenditures

Amounts Passed-
Through to 

Subrecipients

FBI - Southern Nevada Transnational Organized Crime Task Force 16.U12 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 19,907$ -$  
US Marshals - Operation Summertime 2022 16.U13 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 13,300 -

901,518 -
Total Department of Justice 11,973,231 622,448

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 
Passed Through Nevada Department of Transportation:

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PR416-19-063 2,944,001 -
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PR567-18-063 8,312,879 -

Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 11,256,880 -

Highway Safety Cluster 
Passed Through Nevada Department of Public Safety:

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 JF-2021-LVMPD-00005 67,683 -
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 JF-2022-LVMPD-00003 202,322 -
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 TS-2022-LVMPD-00040 61,591 -

331,596 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Public Safety:
National Priority Safety Program 20.616 69A3752130000405DNVM 7,836 -
National Priority Safety Program 20.616 69A3752130000405DNVM 6,756 -
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 69A3752230000405DNVM 30,416 -
National Priority Safety Program 20.616 69A3752130000405DNVM 26,842 -
National Priority Safety Program 20.616 21-898 58,951 -
DUI Court Office of Traffic Safety 20.616 LFD-2021-LVJC-00001 3,953 -
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 TS-2021-LVMPD-00008 32,864 -
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 TS-2022-LVMPD-00008 85,816 -
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 TS-2021-LVMPD-00007 21,475 -
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 TS-2022-LVMPD-00193 397,753 -

672,662 -
Total Highway Safety Cluster 1,004,258 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Public Safety:
National Priority Safety Programs 20.608 TS-2022-LVMPD-00007 108,644 -
National Priority Safety Programs 20.608 TS-2021-LVMPD-00006 14,631 -
National Priority Safety Programs 20.608 TS-2022-LVMPD-00006 325,838 -

449,113 -
Passed Through the Slate Emergency Response Commission: 
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness (HMEP) 20.703 22-HMEP-03-01 17,536 -

Total Department of Transportation 12,727,788 -

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Community Development Financial lnstitutions Cluster 
Passed Through State of Nevada:

COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Funds 21.019 AOCT81026920AH-4 814,185 -
COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Funds 21.019 DIRECT ALLOCATION 13,166,704 2,569,198

13,980,889 2,569,198
Direct Program: 

Community Development Financial Institutions Program 21.020 212882252 3,864 -
Community Development Financial Institutions Program 21.020 212882252 7,913 -

11,777 -

Direct Program: 
COVID-19 - Emergency Rental Assistance ARP Act 2021 21.023 DIRECT ALLOCATION 17,600,754 -
COVID-19 - Emergency Rental Assistance ARP Act 2021 21.023 DIRECT ALLOCATION 14,445,891 -
COVID-19 - Emergency Rental Assistance 21.023 1505-0266 4,178,334 -

36,224,979 -

Passed Through City of Henderson:
COVID-19 Emergency Rental Assistance 21.023 24599 6,692,113 -

Passed Through City of Las Vegas:
COVID-19 Emergency Rental Assistance 21.023 AGREEMENT 12,905,144 -

Passed Through City of North Las Vegas:
COVID-19 Emergency Rental Assistance 21.023 USDT-ERAP2021 4,964,458 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Business and Industry, Housing Division:
COVID-19 Clark County Emergency Rental Assistance Program 21.023 AGREEMENT 91,258,878 -
COVID-19 Clark County Emergency Rental Assistance Program 21.023 2021 AGREEMENT 37,793,933 -

189,839,505 -

Direct Program: 
COVID-19 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 DIRECT ALLOCATION 396,586,001 1,268,861

Passed Through Nevada Housing Division, Department of Business and Industry:
COVID-19 AB486 Rental Assistance 21.027 AGREEMENT 370,883 -
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Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
COVID-19 Coronavirus State Recovery Funds 21.027 21027-22-001 324,000$    -$     

397,280,884 1,268,861
Total Community Development Financial lnstitutions Cluster 601,113,054 3,838,059
Total Department of the Treasury 601,113,054 3,838,059

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Direct Program: 
Air Pollution Control Program Support 66.001 97914722 862,378 -  

Direct Program: 
Surveys, Studies, Research, Investigations, Demonstrations, and Special Purpose 66.034 98T03301-1 75,345 -  

Direct Program: 
Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements 66.818 99T35801 98,771 -  

Total Environmental Protection Agency 1,036,494 -  

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Passed Through Nevada Department of Public Safety:
Environmental Remediation and Waste Processing and Disposal 81.104 8110418E-7019 801 -  

Total Department of Energy 801 -  

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Aging Cluster 
Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:

Special Programs for the Aging_Title III, Part B_Grants for Supportive Services 93.044 03-015-21-LX-22 135,975 -  

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part C, Nutrition Services 93.045 03-005-04-2C3X-21 3,685 -  

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
COVID-19 - Home Delivered Meals Services (COVID-19 Project) 93.045 03-005-04-2C3X-22 91,210 -  

Total Aging Cluster 230,870 -  

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Guardianship Assistance 93.090 314212-22-001 1,493,232 -  

Passed Through Southern Nevada Health District:
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 C2100050 2,316 -  
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 C2200080 41,315 -  
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 C2100051 6,430 -  
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 C2200077 51,847 -  
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 C000093 12,352 -  
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 C000093 7,766 -  

122,026 -  

Direct Program: 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 93.243 1H79T1081098-01 49,915 -  
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 93.243 5H79TI081098-04 278,278 -  
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - FC 93.243 5H79T1081903-03 239,906 -  
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - FC 93.243 5H79TI081903-04 14,018 -  
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 93.243 5H79TI081028-03 48,500 -  
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 93.243 5H79TI081028-04 206,727 -  

837,344 -  

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity  93.323 SG 25554 1,476,609 -  

Direct Program: 
Transitional Living for Homeless Youth 93.550 90CX7187-04-00 63,046 63,046
Trans Living Prog & Maternity 93.550 90CX7187-05-00 138,127 135,377

201,173 198,423

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Families First Transition 93.556 93556-20-301 260,226 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-21-010 391,009 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-21-404 40,000 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-20-009 55,016 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-21-009 162,110  -  
Time Limited Reunification 93.556 93556-21-405 157,500 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-20-007 20,457 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-21-007 170,851 -  
IVB 2 Family Preservation 93.556 93556-21-403 45,157 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-20-008 64,616 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-21-008 182,370  -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-20-101 40,125 -  
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 93556-21-101 83,326 -  

1,672,763 - 
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Direct Program: 
Education and Prevention Grants to Reduce Sexual Abuse of Runaway, Homeless 93.557 90Y02329-03-00 37,479$ 36,829$

TANF Cluster 
Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:

TANF Emergency Assistance Program 93.558 TANF2201 1,622,446 -
Total TANF Cluster 1,622,446 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Child Support Enforcement Program 93.563 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 18,291,586 -
Child Support Enforcement Program 93.563 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 403,832 -
Child Support Enforcement Program 93.563 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 437,113 -
Child Support Enforcement Program 93.563 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 1,454,196 -

20,586,727 -

Passed Through the Nevada Administration:
Court Improvement Program 93.586 FY21 GRANT AGREEMENT 21,540 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Children's Trust Fund 93.590 9359020102 44,495 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Educational and Training Voucher 93.599 93599-21-001 176,948 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Adoption and Legal Guardianship Incentive Payments 93.603 93603-19-002 183,006 -
Adoption and Legal Guardianship Incentive Payments 93.603 93603-20-001 162,261 -

345,267 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Children's Justice Act 93.643 93643-20-001 24,079 -
Children's Justice Act 93.643 93643-18-006 35,933 -

60,012 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
COVID-19 - CARES IVB Emergency Assistance 93.645 93645-20-102 21,595 -
Child Welfare Social Service Title IVB Subpart 1 93.645 93645-21-001 186,015 -

207,610 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 314212-22-001 6,071,787 -
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 314212-22-001 13,271,831 -

19,343,618 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Adoption Assistance 93.659 314212-22-001 2,102,490 -
Adoption Assistance 93.659 314212-22-001 30,986,531 -

33,089,021 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 2101NVSOSR/2201NVSOSR 1,970,568 -

1,970,568 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act 93.669 93669-18-002 76,978 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
John H. Chafee Foster Care Program for Successful Transition to Adulthood 93.674 93674-20-001 178,052 -
John H. Chafee Foster Care Program for Successful Transition to Adulthood 93.674 93674-21-001 851,769 -
CHAFEE Support Foster Youth & Family Through the Pandemic PL116 Div X 93.674 93674-21-101 1,553,397 -

2,583,218 -

Direct Program: 
Ending the HIV Epidemic:A Plan for America Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program Parts A/B 93.686 6 UT8HA33925-02-01 671,567 246,533

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Behavioral Health, Prevention & Treatment 93.788 9378820 38,247 -
Regional Behavioral Health Coordinator 93.788 937881S 39,371 -

77,618 -

Passed Through Board of Regents, Nevada:
MAT Re-Entry Court 93.788 UNR-21-46 100,244 -
MAT Re-Entry Court 93.788 UNR-22-59 652,990 -
MAT Re-Entry Court Sor 2.0 93.788 UNR-21-90 120,228 -
Community Court Opioid Strategic Targeted Response Grant 93.788 UNR-21-75 105,899 -
Misdemeanor Treatment Court State Opioid Response 93.788 UNR-22-70 348,797 -

1,328,158 -
1,405,776 -

Direct Program: 
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants: 

Ryan White Ending the HIV Epidemic Grant 93.914 5 UT8HA33925-03-00 254,555 99,233
Ryan White Minority Aids Initiative Program 93.914 2 H89HA06900-16-00 335,657 301,326
Ryan White Minority Aids Initiative Program 93.914 2 H89HA06900-17-00 100,796 90,059
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Ryan White HIV Emergency Relief Project 93.914 2 H89HA06900-16-00 4,614,111$          4,037,465$          
Ryan White HIV Emergency Relief Project 93.914 2 H89HA06900-17-00 1,300,631 1,033,398
COVID-19 - Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program Part A Covid-19 Response 93.914 1 H9AHA36943-01-00 62,481 62,481

6,668,231 5,623,963 

Direct Program: 
Cooperative Agreement to Support State-Based Safe Motherhood and Infant Health 93.946 5 NU38DP000004-04-00 1,215 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 9395821C 6,194 -
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 9395820 13,143 -

19,337 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Health and Human Services:
Substance Abuse Prevention Treatment Agency 93.959 HD 17922 103,209 -
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 9395920 3,660 -
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.959 9395921C 23,365 -

130,234 -
Total Department of Health and Human Services 95,096,302 6,105,747

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

Direct Program: 
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program 95.001 G19NV0001A 1,514,844 -
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program 95.001 G21NV0001A 2,283,817 -

3,798,661 -

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Direct Program: 
National Urban Search and Rescue Response System 97.025 EMW-2019-CA-00056-S01 16,820 -
National Urban Search and Rescue Response System 97.025 EMW-2020-CA-00026-S01 519,521 6,241
National Urban Search and Rescue Response System 97.025 EMW-2021-CA-00025-S01 121,379 3,997
National Urban Search and Rescue Response System 97.025 EMW-20188-CA-USR-0019 616,965 -

1,274,685 10,238

Passed Through Nevada Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management:
COVID-19 - FY19 Public Assistance Grant (PAG)-Vaccination COVID19 97.036 PA-09-NV-4523-PW-00075 502,010 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management:
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 97042.18 - -
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 97042.20 38,502 -
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 97042.21 493,940 -
COVID-19 - Emergency Management Performance Grant ARPA 97.042 97042.21S 16,489 -
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 97042.22 225,804 -

774,735 -

Direct Program: 
DHS   Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 EMW-2020-FG-02606 175,038 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management:
Pre-Disaster Mitigation 97.047 PDMC-PL-09-NV-2019-002 46,875 -

Homeland Security Grant Program:
Direct Program: 

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.20-3100 521,298 -

Passed Through Nevada Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management:
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 98,960 -
UASI Grant Emergency Operation Center 97.067 97067.21 2,043 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 10,398 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 13,697 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.21 4,752 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.18-3100 1,928 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.18-3100 18,334 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 8,068 -
UASI Grant - MACTAC 97.067 97067.21 900 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 42,256 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 6,500 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 54,000 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.20-3000 94,980 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.21 85,000 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 64,373 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.20-3000 163,885 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 10,197 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 20,155 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.20-3100 53,321 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.21 15,139 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.21 112,295 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3000 164,729 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.20-3000 426,350 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.21 194,820 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.18-3100 10,181 -

(Continued)
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Clark County, Nevada
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal Grantor/Passed-Through Grantor/Program Title AL Grant/Pass-Through Number

Total Federal
Disbursements/
Expenditures

Amounts Passed-
Through to 

Subrecipients

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.18-3100 237,722$    -$    
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.20-3100 366,875 -  
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.20-3100 24,925 -  
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067.19-3100 164,938 -  

3,346,273 -  
Passed Through Nevada Office of the Military, Division of Emergency Management:

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 EMW-2021-SS-00046-S01 4,023 -  
3,871,595 -  

Total Homeland Security Grant Program 3,871,595 -  

Direct Program: 
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 97.083 EMW-2019-FF-00144 109,921 -  

Direct Program: 
Secret Service Agreement 97.U01 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 15,827 -  
Secret Service Agreement 97.U01 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 12,856 -  
Secret Service Agreement 97.U02 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 2,401 -  
Secret Service Agreement 97.U02 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 2,192 -  
Secret Service Agreement 97.U03 LV02PR06LV0017 20,480 -  
Secret Service Agreement 97.U03 LV02PR06LV0017 67,149 -  

120,905 -  
Total Department of Homeland Security 6,875,764 10,238

TOTAL FEDERAL DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES 767,895,763$    31,291,846$    

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this schedule.
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Clark County, Nevada 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of Federal financial
assistance programs of Clark County, Nevada (the “County”).  The County’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to
its basic financial statements.  Federal award expenditures for the Clark County Department of Aviation, Clark
County Water Reclamation District, Las Vegas Valley Water District, Big Bend Water District, Kyle Canyon Water
District, University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, and Regional Transportation Commission of Southern
Nevada, if any, are not included in this schedule, as they are audited separately.  All other Federal financial
assistance received by the County directly from Federal agencies as well as Federal financial assistance passed
through other government agencies is included in the schedule.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Clark County,
Nevada, and is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented
in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Clark County, Nevada received federal awards both
directly from federal agencies and indirectly through pass-through entities.  Federal financial assistance provided to
a subrecipient is treated as an expenditure when it is paid to the subrecipient.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Governmental fund types account for Clark County, Nevada’s federal grant activity.  Therefore, expenditures in the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are recognized on the modified accrual basis – when they become a
demand on current available financial resources.  Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in Subpart E – Cost Principles of the Uniform Guidance.  The Clark County, Nevada’s summary of
significant accounting policies is presented in Note 1 in the Clark County, Nevada’s basic financial statements.

The County has elected to use both the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance and
Federally negotiated indirect cost rates, where applicable.

4. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expenditures of Federal awards reported in the County’s basic financial statements are as follows:

General fund $  4,548 
Special revenue funds 762,104,626 
Capital projects funds 5,704,555 
Agency funds    82,034 

Total    $ 767,895,763    
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

(Continued) 

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results  

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X  No 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified not 
Considered to be material weaknesses X  Yes  None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial 
 statements noted?   Yes  X  No 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over major program: 

Material weakness(es) identified? X  Yes  No 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified not 
Considered to be material weaknesses? X  Yes None Reported 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

Qualified for Southern Nevada Public 
Land Management program 

Unmodified for other programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?  X  Yes  No 

Identification of major programs: 

Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

14.231 Emergency Solutions Grant Program 
15.235 Southern Nevada Public Land Management  
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 
21.023 COVID-19 - Emergency Rental Assistance Program 
21.027 COVID-19 – Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
93.563 Child Support Enforcement Cluster 
93.914 HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between  
Type A and Type B programs:  $ 3,000,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  Yes X  No 
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

(Continued) 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

Finding 2022-001 – Internal Controls Over Timely Access Termination for Separated Employees 
from Information Systems (Significant Deficiency) 

Criteria 

Clark County’s Technology Directive 1 indicates the County’s policy for termination of employee access 
upon separation: 

 All access privileges to the County Computing Systems and Networks must be immediately
terminated under the following circumstances:  When Human Resources provides notification that
a user will be terminated from employment, whether voluntarily or involuntarily. However, if the
access of a user is being involuntarily terminated, the access shall be terminated prior to the user
being notified of termination.

 Human Resources and the responsible Elected or Appointed Clark County Department Head or
designee (Deputy or Assistant Department Head) shall notify the IT Department immediately upon
the termination of an employee.

Internal controls over information systems are a key component of an organization’s control environment. 
Entities should have internal controls over the termination of user access upon separation from the entity 
to prevent erroneous and fraudulent transactions or entry to systems. 

Condition 

Upon testing a sample of 32 employees separated from the County 12 had their system access removed 
more than 5 business days after the employee was separated. The delays in termination ranged from 13 
to 272 days after employee separation. 

Cause 

Delays between employee separation and termination of system access were caused by: 
- 6 of the delayed terminations were caused by requests from departments to delay the termination of

access contrary to internal policy.
- 6 of the delayed terminations were caused by Internal IT processes not being followed.

Effect 

Untimely termination of access for terminated employees could result in unauthorized transactions recorded 
in the financial reporting system. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the County strengthen internal controls surrounding the termination process to ensure 
requests by departments are made timely and access is removed timely in line with Clark County IT policies. 

Management’s Response 

See Corrective Action Plan. 
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

(Continued) 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding 2022-002: Allowable Costs and Eligibility – Material Weakness 

Program: Emergency Rental Assistance  

Assistance Listing No.: 21.023 

Federal Agency: Department of the Treasury – Direct Award Program 

Award No.: 1505-0266, 24599, USDT-ERAP2021, ERA0117, 2021 CAA CCSS, 2022 CAA CCSS, 
CCERA2-2021 

Award Year: Fiscal year 2021-2022 

Category of Finding: Activities Allowed or Unallowed, Allowable Costs, and Eligibility 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: As a condition of receiving Federal awards, non-Federal entities agree 
to comply with laws, regulations, and the provisions of grant agreements and contracts, and to maintain 
internal control to provide reasonable assurance of compliance with these requirements.  

Allowable Costs - 2 CFR Part 200.403 Factors affecting allowability of costs except where otherwise 
authorized by statute, costs must meet the following general criteria in order to be allowable under Federal 
awards:  

(a) Be necessary and reasonable for the performance of the Federal award and be allocable thereto
under these principles.

(b) Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in these principles or in the Federal award as
to types or amount of cost items.

(c) Be consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly to both federally-financed and
other activities of the non-Federal entity.

(d) Be accorded consistent treatment. A cost may not be assigned to a Federal award as a direct
cost if any other cost incurred for the same purpose in like circumstances has been allocated to the
Federal award as an indirect cost.

(e) Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except,
for state and local governments and Indian tribes only, as otherwise provided for in this part.

(f) Not be included as a cost or used to meet cost sharing or matching requirements of any other
federally-financed program in either the current or a prior period. See also § 200.306(b).

(g) Be adequately documented. See also §§ 200.300 through 200.309 of this part.

(h) Cost must be incurred during the approved budget period. The Federal awarding agency is
authorized, at its discretion, to waive prior written approvals to carry forward unobligated balances
to subsequent budget periods pursuant to § 200.308(e)(3).
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

(Continued) 

501(c)(2)(A) of the Consolidated Appropriations Act and section 3201(d)(1)(A) of ARPA Financial 
assistance to households includes payment of rent, rental arrears, utilities and home energy costs, utility 
and home energy costs arrears, and other expenses related to housing. 

Eligibility - Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, for ERA 1 in sections 501(c)(2)(C)(ii) of the Act 
concerning documentation of payments to households, sections 501(f)(2)(A) and (B) of the Act concerning 
signature requirements for applications and documentation required for tenants, section 501(k)(1) 
concerning area median income determinations, and sections 501(k)(3)(A)(I) and (II) concerning eligible 
household determinations and attestation requirements. 

Grantees must require all applications for assistance to include an attestation from the applicant household 
that all information included is correct and complete. In all cases, grantees must document their policies 
and procedures for determining household eligibility to include policies and procedures for determining the 
prioritization of households in compliance with the statute and maintain records of their determinations.  

In addition, 2 CFR 200.303 requires nonfederal entities to, among other things, establish and maintain 
effective internal control over the federal award that provides reasonable assurance that the nonfederal 
entity is managing the federal award in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of the federal award. 

Condition: The County did not have an effective system of internal control in place to ensure segregation 
of duties for processing and review to ensure the applications submitted were adequately documented for 
eligibility and calculation of benefit over a subset of disbursements in the CARES Housing Assistance 
Program (CHAP). During our internal control walkthrough, we identified that Clark County Social Services 
Department Employees would directly process applications related to CHAP applications which is separate 
from the process which utilized 3rd party contractors for preparation before review by Clark County. This 
process occurred when specific applications were identified as higher priority such as Court Cases involving 
evictions. Upon discussion with management, it was determined that the Social Services Department 
employee processed the application but there was not a subsequent independent review of applications for 
eligibility requirements and for allowability before disbursement for all applications subject to this process.  

Cause: The Clark County Social Services Department was required to quickly develop a procedure to 
process applications for higher priority Cares Housing Assistance Program (CHAP) applications, such as 
those related to evictions moving through the Clark County Court system. As a result, the procedure was 
not properly designed to ensure adequate controls over the application review process.  

Effect: Transactions that follow a process without adequate segregation of duties may lead to noncompliant 
disbursements. Without strong internal controls over participant eligibility, ineligible participants may benefit 
from federally funded programs. Lack of a separate independent review over these transactions involving 
allowability and eligibility determinations could result in additional noncompliance with federal requirements. 

Questioned Costs: None 

Context: This matter was identified in the prior fiscal years single audit, management implemented a control 
but was unable to complete a retroactive review of applications that had already been processed by the 
Social Services department in the fiscal year. During our testing Crowe did not identify any instances of 
noncompliance during our testing of 74 applications, 30 of which were processed through the Social 
Services department. 

Identification of a repeat finding: Yes 
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

(Continued) 

Recommendation: We recommend that the County ensure their revised procedures that include a 
separate independent review surrounding determinations of eligibility and allowability for disbursements to 
applicants prior to disbursement be applied to all Emergency Rental Assistance applications processed by 
the Social Services Department.  

Management Response: See Corrective Action Plan. 
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

(Continued) 

Finding 2022-003: Special Tests and Provision – Significant Deficiency 

Program: Emergency Solutions Grant Program 

Assistance Listing No.: 14.231 

Federal Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Award No.: E-21-UC-32-0001, E-20-UW-32-001, E-20-DW-32-0001, E-20-UC-32-0001 

Award Year: Fiscal year 2021-2022 

Category of Finding: Special Tests and Provisions 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
requires that payments to subrecipients for allowable costs be made within 30 days after receiving the 
subrecipients complete payment request. 

Condition: The County did not have an effective system of internal control in place to ensure subrecipient 
payments were made within 30 days of receiving the subrecipients complete payment request.  

Cause: Staffing challenges within the Clark County Social Services Department lead to delays in payments 
beyond the 30 day requirement. 

Effect: The County was not in compliance with the requirement to pay subrecipients within 30 days of 
receiving a complete payment request.  

Questioned Costs: None 

Context: During fiscal year 21/22 the Emergency Solutions Grants Program had roughly 335 subrecipient 
payments totaling $11,013,872. Crowe tested a sample of 28 subrecipient payments totaling $2,545,919, 
of which 11 selections totaling $60,701 were not paid within 30 days of receiving the reimbursement request 
from the subrecipient. Late payments over the 30 day deadline ranged from 4 to 93 days. 

Identification of a repeat finding: Not a repeat finding. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the County strengthen controls surrounding the timely payment 
of subrecipients within the 30 day requirement.  

Management Response: See Corrective Action Plan. 
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

(Continued) 

Finding 2022-004: Reporting – Material Weakness  

Program: Southern Nevada Public Land Management Program 

Assistance Listing No.: 15.235 

Federal Agency: Federal Bureau of Land Management 

Award No.: L16AC0098, L16AC00099, L17AC00041, L17AC00040, L17AC00077, L17AC00076, 
L20AC00065, L20AC00067, L20AC00070, L20AC00075, L20AC00069 

Award Year: Fiscal year 2021-2022 

Category of Finding: Reporting 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 (2 CFR 200) Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, section 303(a) 
states, the non-Federal entity must establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award 
that provides reasonable assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing the Federal award in 
compliance with Federal statues, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. These 
internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in “Standards for Internal Control in the Federal 
Government” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States or the “Internal Control Integrated 
Framework”, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 

Condition: The County did not have adequate documentation of internal controls to ensure reports met 
requirements and were submitted timely. 

Cause: The County did not have adequate procedures for internal controls surrounding reporting to ensure 
requirements were met.  

Effect: Failure to implement sufficient internal controls to ensure the accuracy and timely filing of reports in 
accordance with federal regulations could result in the program being noncompliant with federal 
statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the federal awards and resulted in a material reporting 
error. 

Questioned Costs: None 

Context: The County has 10 active grants for the program, based on timing of execution the County issued 
10 Annual Financial Reports and 31 Quarterly Performance Reports during the year under audit. Crowe’s 
testing of 2 Annual Financial Reports and 7 Quarterly Performance Reports Crowe identified the following: 

- 2 of the Annual Financial Reports did not have adequate support indicating segregation of
duties regarding preparation and approval over the report.

- 1 of the Annual Financial Report's Federal Share of Expenditure was not properly reported.
The amount reported for federal share of expenditures was $1,065,222.04 while the
expenditures incurred by that point were $3,008,504.18, a $1,943,282.14 difference.

- 7 of the Quarterly Progress Reports did not have adequate support indicating segregation
of duties regarding preparation and approval over the report.
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

(Continued) 

Identification of a repeat finding: Not a repeat finding. 

Recommendation: We recommend the County to formalize the preparation and review process for 
Southern Nevada Public Land Management grant reports, including retention of preparation and approval 
documentation. 

Management Response: See Corrective Action Plan. 
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 

Finding 2022-005: Internal Controls Over Reimbursement Requests – Material Weakness 

Program: Southern Nevada Public Land Management Program 

Assistance Listing No.: 15.235 

Federal Agency: Federal Bureau of Land Management 

Award No.: L16AC0098, L16AC00099, L17AC00041, L17AC00040, L17AC00077, L17AC00076, 
L20AC00065, L20AC00067, L20AC00070, L20AC00075, L20AC00069 

Award Year: Fiscal year 2021-2022 

Category of Finding: Cash Management 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 (2 CFR 200) Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, section 303(a) 
states, the non-Federal entity must establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award 
that provides reasonable assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing the Federal award in 
compliance with Federal statues, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. These 
internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in “Standards for Internal Control in the Federal 
Government” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States or the “Internal Control Integrated 
Framework”, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 

Condition: Upon testing 4 reimbursement requests related to the Southern Nevada Public Land 
Management within the Clark County Department of Comprehensive Planning we were unable to obtain 
documentation verifying segregation of duties.  

Cause: The Clark County Department of Comprehensive Planning did not have adequate procedures in 
place to ensure adequate segregation of duties surrounding reimbursement requests. 

Effect: Insufficient internal controls over reimbursement requests could result in the program being 
noncompliant with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of the program. 

Questioned Costs: None. 

Context: The Southern Nevada Public Land Management Program is managed by two Clark County 
departments, the Department of Comprehensive Planning and the Department of Environment and 
Sustainability. For fiscal year 21/22 the Department of Comprehensive planning oversaw $5.1m in SNPLM 
funds while the Department of Environment and Sustainability oversaw $1.3m in SNPLM funds. We 
selected 4 reimbursements from the Department of Comprehensive Planning totaling $3.6m and 4 
reimbursements from the Department of Environment and Sustainability totaling $84k out of a population 
of 111 totaling $6.6m. During the testing of the 4 reimbursement requests from the Department of 
Comprehensive Planning We noted that there was not supporting documentation for adequate segregation 
of duties for the reimbursements requests that include documentation of a separate preparer and approver. 

Identification of a repeat finding: Not a repeat finding. 

Recommendation: We recommend that management strengthen their internal controls policies and 
procedures related to reimbursement requests for the Southern Nevada Public Land Management program. 

Management Response: See Corrective Action Plan. 
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Office of the County Comptroller 

500 S Grand Central Parkway 1st Floor • Box 551210 • Las Vegas NV 89155-1210 
(702) 455-3895 • Fax (702) 455-5794

Anna Danchik, Comptroller

Management's Response to Auditor's Findings and 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and 

Corrective Action Plans 

June 30, 2022 

Prepared by Management of 

Clark County, Nevada 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JAMES B. GIBSON, Chair • JUSTIN C. JONES, Vice Chair 

MARILYN KIRKPATRICK • WILLIAM MCCURDY II • ROSS MILLER • MICHAEL NAFT • TICK SEGERBLOM 
KEVIN SCHILLER, County Manager 
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Information 
ifECHNOLOGY 

January 23rd
, 2023 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Bob Leek, Chief Information Officer 

Robert Vega, Deputy Chief Information Officer-Security Services 

Suzanne Noble, Deputy Chief Information Officer - Application Services 

Swetha Vemula, Deputy Chief Information Officer·· Technical Services 

MEMORANDUM 

Finding 2022-001- Internal Controls Over Timely Access Termination for Separate Employees from 

Information Systems (Significant Deficiency) 

To remedy the condition, cause, and effect resulting in the finding regarding timely access termination 
for separated employees from information systems, our team's strategy to ensure that proper internal 
controls are in place moving forward: 

Processing Timely Removal of Access for Separated Employees Strategy 

A review of current practices regarding the identification, notification, workflows, and timely processing 
of removing access to information systems for separated employees will be conducted by February 15th, 

2023. Participants in the review may include representatives and responsible individuals accountable 
for processing separation and termination activities: 

Human Resources 
Department Heads or Assistant Department Heads 
Elected official staff 
Enterprise Resource Planning {ERP) system coordinators 
Information Technology 

The review will identify gaps and risks in the timely processing of removing system access and make 
recommendations to improve workflows, clarify accountabilities, and develop reports. Updated 
procedures will be implemented order to comply with Clark County's Technology Directive 1 which 
indicates the County's policy for termination of employee access upon separation, namely: 

• All access privileges to the County Computing Systems and Networks must be immediately
terminated under the following circumstances: When Human Resources provides notification
that a user will be terminated from employment, whether voluntarily or involuntarily. However,
if the access of a user is being involuntarily terminated, the access shall be terminated prior to the
user being notified of termination.

• Human Resources and the responsible Elected or Appointed Clark County Department Head or
designee (Deputy or Assistant Department Head) shall notify the IT Department immediately
upon the termination of an employee.

Internal controls over information systems are a key component of an organization's control environment. 
Updated internal controls over the termination of user access upon separation from the entity will 
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contribute to the prevention of erroneous and fraudulent transactions or entry to systems. These steps 

will be formalized in an updated Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) on or before February 28th
, 2023. 

At that time all personnel involved in the workflow and processing of timely removal of access will be 

trained on the SOP. Newly hired personnel responsible for the workflow will be trained within 30 days of 

hire. The Chief Information Security Officer will be responsible for ensuring that all responsible personnel 

have completed this training within the established timeframes. 

Sincerely, 

Bob Leek 

Chief Information Officer 

bob.leek@clarkcountynv.gov 

702-455-5853

cc: Les Lee Shell, Jessica Colvin, Robert Vega, Swetha Vemula, Suzanne Noble, Curtis Germany, Caroline 

Santoro 
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Department of Social Service 
1600 Pinto Lane • Las Vegas NV 89106 
(702) 455-4270 • Fax (702) 455-5950

Abigail Frierson, Deputy County Manager 
Kristin Cooper, Deputy Director • Randy Reinoso, Deputy Director• Margaret LeB/anc, Deputy Director 

March 23, 2023 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Finding 2022-002: 
Program: 
Assistance Listing No.: 
Federal Agency: 
Award No.: 

Award Year: 
Category of Finding: 

Allowable Costs and Eligibility - Material Weakness 
Emergency Rental Assistance 
21.023 
Department of the Treasury 
1505-0266, 24599, USDT-ERAP2021, ERA0117, 2021 CM CCSS, 2022 
CM CCSS, CCERA2-2021 
Fiscal year 2021-2022 
Activities Allowed or Unallowed, Allowable Costs, and Eligibility 

The Department acknowledges and agrees with the finding. To ensure proper internal controls are in 
place for cases processed directly by Clark County Department of Social Service employees, during FY23 
the Department implemented an independent secondary review procedure over allowability and eligibility 
determinations prior to the disbursement of funds. Evidence of secondary review has since been 
sufficiently documented in each case. A review checklist, standard operating procedures, and staff 
training has been implemented since the discovery of the finding. 

Randy Reinoso 
Deputy Director 

BOARD OF COUNlY COMMISSIONERS 
JAMES B. GIBSON Chair, JUSTIN JONES Vice Chair 

MARILYN KIRKPATRICK t MICHAEL NAFT ♦ ROSS MILLER t WILLIAM McCURDY II t TICK SEGERBLOM 
YOLANDA KING, County Manager 
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Department of Social Service 
1600 Pinto Lane • Las Vegas NV  89106 

(702) 455-4270 • Fax (702) 455-5950

Abigail Frierson, Deputy County Manager 
Kristin Cooper, Deputy Director •  Randy Reinoso, Deputy Director 

Margaret LeBlanc, Deputy Director 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JAMES B. GIBSON, Chair, JUSTIN JONES, Vice Chair 

MARILYN KIRKPATRICK ♦ MICHAEL NAFT ♦ ROSS MILLER ♦ WILLIAM McCURDY II ♦ TICK SEGERBLOM 
KEVIN SCHILLER, County Manager

March 23, 2023 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Finding 2022-003: Special Tests and Provision – Significant Deficiency 
Program: Emergency Solutions Grant program 

Passed through Nevada Department of Public Safety 
CFDA No.:  14.231 
Federal Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Award No.: E-21-UC-32-0001, E-20-UW-32-001, E-20-DW-32-0001, E-20-UC-32-0001
Award Year:  Fiscal year 2021-2022

To remedy the condition, cause, and effect resulting in the finding regarding payments to subrecipients for allowable costs to be 
made within 30 days after receiving the subrecipients complete payment request: 

Clark County Social Service- Community Resources Management 

• Community Resources Management leadership has taken an active role to increase our compliance with HUD regulations by 
creating an internal Accounts Payable process for reimbursement for all of our grants, including ESG.  This process outlines
the entire reimbursement process from beginning to end, including the required actions for each staff member involved.

• As an additional step, CRM has also implemented the use of the “Invoice Status Sheet”. This sheet will be created and
maintained for each ESG reimbursement to track different actions taken for each invoice. This sheet will be useful in
providing detail of reasoning behind delayed reimbursement processing as well as assist staff in maintaining more accurate
records.

• Lastly, invoice trackers have been created for all grants, including ESG. The invoice tracker tracks each invoice received, and
includes dates for when invoices are received, when invoices are routed through each step of the process, and when they
are submitted to the Comptroller’s Office for payment. The tracker is located in a shared accessible folder and will be
monitored by the CRM Accountant and Manager to ensure payments are submitted for payment within 30 days.

These changes were introduced to the CRM team on March 7, 2023.  

Sincerely,  

Kristin Cooper, Deputy Director 
Clark County Social Service 
KRC@ClarkCountyNV.gov  
702.455.5025 

CC: A.J. Johnson, Kathleen San Andres, Hadi Amjad (Crowe) 
Margaret LeBlanc, Anna Danchik, Colleen Boyle, Janah Quito, Randy Reinoso, Karen Schneider, Jayson Rowel, Lindbert 
Pagtama, Tameca Ulmer (Clark County) 

207

mailto:KRC@ClarkCountyNV.gov


March 20, 2023 

DES 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT 

AND SUSTAINABILITY 
. ... 

� 
c,tqualty dnel!�� W1talnot111ty 

4701 W. Russell Road 2nd Floor 
Las Vegas, NV 89118-2231 

Phone: (702) 455-5942 • Fax: (702) 383-9994 
Marci Henson, Director 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Category of Finding: 

Program: 

AL No.: 

Federal Agenq·: 

Award No.: 
Award Year: 

Reporting 
Southern Nevada Public Land Management Program 
15.235 
Federal Bureau of Land Management 
Ll 7AC00076, L17AC00077, L20AC00065, L20AC000067 
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

To remedy the cause resulting in the finding the County did not have adequate procedures for internal controls to ensure reports 
met requirements and were submitted timely. The Department of Environment and Sustainability's has implemented the 
following strategy to ensure that proper internal controls are in place moving forward: 

Context: Annual Financial Report did not have adequate support indicating segregation of duties regarding preparation and 
approval over the report. 

Remedy: The Department of Environment and Sustainability has updated the standard operating procedures (SOP) to require the 
Administrative Specialist submit the prepared SF425 to our Director electronically with the following language included in the 
email: 

''!, Administrative Specialist Sharon Mcleish, have prepared the SF-425 on XX/XX/XXXX. I am submitting it for review and 
signature approval to the Director of Environment and Sustainability Marci Henson." 

The SOP has been updated to include that upon return of the signed fonn fro1i1 the Director, the Administrative Assistant will 
perfo1111 a verification of the Director's signature and date. The SOP was also updated to require the email chain that includes 
the attestation of preparation and signature approval be archived with the SF425. 

Context: Quarterly Progress Reports did not have the adequate suppo1t indicating segregation of duties regarding preparation 
and approval over the report. 

Remedy: The Department of Environment and Sustainability has updated the standard operating procedures (SOP) to require the 
Project Managers to submit the prepared Quarterly Progress Reports to the Program Lead electronically with the following 
language included in the email: 

"l, (Title/Employee), have prepared the FYXX QX Quaiterly Progress Rep01t on XX/XX/XXXX. I am submitting it for review 
and electronic approval to the Principal Environmental Specialist, Kimberley Jenkins." 

The SOP has been updated to include that upon receipt of the approval of the Quarterly Progress Report, the Project Manager 
will archive a copy of the repo1t and approval. 

Sincerely, 

Jodi Bechtel, Deputy Director 
Department of Environment and Sustainability 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JAMES B. GIBSON, Chair • JUSTIN JONES, Vice Chair 

MARILYN KIRKPATRICK • WILLIAM McCURDY II • ROSS MILLER • MICHAEL NAFT • TICK SEGERBLOM 

KEVIN SCHILLER. County Mana11er 
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Department of Comprehensive Planning 

March 28, 2023 

500 S Grand Central Pky • Box 551741 • Las Vegas NV 89155-1741 
(702) 455-4314 • Fax (702) 455-3271

Nancy A. Amundsen, Director

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Finding 2022-004: 
Program: 
AL No.: 
Federal Agency: 
Award No: 

Award Year: 
Category of Finding: 

Rep011ing - Material Weakness 
Southern Nevada Public Land Management Program 
15.235 
Federal Bureau of Land Management 
L16AC00098, L17AC00041, Ll7AC00040, L20AC00075, L20AC00069, 
L20AC00070 
FY 2021-2022 
Reporting 

Context: Annual Financial Reports did not have adequate support documentation indicating segregation 
of duties regarding preparation and approval over the report. 

Remedy: The Department of Comprehensive Planning Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) have been 
updated to require the Senior Management Analyst submit the prepared SF425 to our Director 
electronically with the following language included in the e-mail: 

"I, Senior Management Analyst Tamara Williams, have prepared the SF425 on XX/XX/XXXX. I am 
submitting it for review and signature approval to the Director of Comprehensive Planning, Nancy A. 
Amundsen." 

The SOP has been updated to include that upon return of the signed form from the Director, the Executive 
Assistant will perform a verification of the Director's signature and date. The SOP will also be updated 
to require the e-mail chain that includes the attestation of preparation and signature approval be archived 
with the SF425. 

Context: Quarterly Progress Reports did not have the adequate support indicating segregation of duties 
regarding preparation and approval over the report. 

Remedy: The Department of Comprehensive Planning has updated the standard operating procedures 
(SOP) to require the Senior Management Analyst to submit the prepared Quarterly Progress Reports to 
the Assistant Planning Manager electronically with the following language included in the email: 

"I, Senior Management Analyst Tamara Williams, have prepared the FYXX QX Quarterly Progress 
Report on XX/XX/XXXXX. I am submitting it for review and electronic approval to the Director of 
Comprehensive Planning, Nancy A. Amundsen." 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JAMES 8. GIBSON, Chair • JUSTIN C. JONES, Vice Chair 
MARILYN KIRKPATRICK • WILLIAM MCCURDY II • ROSS MILLER • MICHAEL NAFT • TICK SEGERBLOM 

KEVIN SCHILLER, County Manager 209



The SOP has been updated to include that upon receipt of the approval of the Quarterly Progress Rep01t, 
the Senior Management Analyst will archive a copy of the report and approval. 

Sincerely, 

N��undsen 
Department of Comprehensive Planning 
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Department of Comprehensive Planning 

March 28, 2023 

500 S Grand Central Pky • Box 551741 • Las Vegas NV 89155-1741 
(702) 455-4314 • Fax (702) 455-3271

Nancy A. Amundsen, Director

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Finding 2022-005: 
Program: 
AL No.: 
Federal Agency: 
Award No: 

Award Year: 
Category of Finding: 

futemal Controls Over Reimbursement Requests - Material Weakness 
Southern Nevada Public Land Management Program 

15.235 
Federal Bureau of Land Management 

LI 6AC00098, L l  7 AC0004 l, Ll 7 AC00040, L20AC00075, L20AC00069, 
L20AC00070 
FY 2021-2022 
Cash Management 

Context: The Clark County Department of Comprehensive Planning did not have adequate procedures in 
place to ensure adequate segregation of duties surrounding reimbursement requests. 

Remedy: The Department of Real Property Management Design & Construction (D&C) initially 

approves reimbursement requests from contractors that are then approved by the Department of Finance. 

The Department of Comprehensive Planning Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) have been updated to 

require the Senior Management Analyst submit the reimbursement requests to our Director electronically 

with the following language included in the e-mail: 

"I, Senior Management Analyst Tamara Williams, have reviewed the reimbursement requests for FYXX

QX on XX/XX/XXXX. I am submitting it for review and signature approval to the Director of 
Comprehensive Planning, Nancy A. Amundsen." 

The SOP has been updated to include that upon receipt of the approval of the reimbursement request, the 
Senior Management Analyst will archive a copy of the request and approval. 

Sincerely, 

Nanc_ . 
Departmen prehensive Planning 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JAMES B. GIBSON, Chair • JUSTIN C. JONES, Vice Chair 
MARILYN KIRKPATRICK • WILLIAM MCCURDY II • ROSS MILLER • MICHAEL NAFT • TICK SEGERBLOM 

KEVIN SCHILLER, County Manager 211



Clark County, Nevada 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Finding 2021-001: Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act – Significant Deficiency 

Program: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
    Direct award program 

Assistance Listing No.: 16.738 

Federal Agency: Department of Justice 

Award No.: 2017-DJ-BX-0400, 2018-DJ-BX-0468, 2019-DJ-BX0831, 2018-DG-BX-k005, 19-JAG-15, 20-
JAG-12 

Award Year: Fiscal year 2020-2021 

Category of Finding: Reporting 

Initial Fiscal Year Finding Occurred: 2021 

Finding Summary: Controls over reporting of Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 
were not designed and implemented to ensure timely submission of the report. In 
addition, there seemed to be a lack of knowledge of the compliance requirements 
regarding the reporting of the subawards.  

Status:  Corrective action has been taken for this. 

Finding 2021-002: Allowable Costs and Eligibility – Material Weakness 

Program: Emergency Rental Assistance  

Assistance Listing No.: 21.023 

Federal Agency: Department of the Treasury – Direct Award Program 

Award No.: 1505-0266, 24599, USDT-ERAP2021, ERA0117, 2021 CAA CCSS 

Award Year: Fiscal year 2020-2021 

Category of Finding: Activities Allowed or Unallowed, Allowable Costs, and Eligibility 

Initial Fiscal Year Finding Occurred: 2021 

Finding Summary: The Clark County Social Services Department was required to quickly develop a 
procedure to process applications for higher priority Cares Housing Assistance 
Program (CHAP) applications, such as those related to evictions moving through 
the Clark County Court system. As a result, the procedure was not properly 
designed to ensure adequate controls over the application review process.  

Status: Finding repeated for FY22. See Finding 2022-002. 
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